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RFP 2019-01 CAO/ADMIN  

(Waste, Recycling & Organics)  

Proponents’ Questions 

 

              

Question 1: 

What is the current annual contract value for each portion of the work?  i.e. the 

collection and processing? 

Answer: 

 

Our records indicate that our 2018 curbside waste collection costs were 

$325,712.02.  

Question 2: 

With respect to the recycling contract costs, please provide the amount before the 

contribution of stewards.  

 Answer: 

Our records indicate that our 2018 curbside recycling collection costs were 

$87,347.64 before the Stewardship Ontario funds.  

Question 3: 

What is the amount of Liquidated Damages levied on the current contractor(s) over the 

last 24 months? 
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Answer: 

This information is confidential and not relevant to the Request for Proposals 

(RFP). 

Question 4: 

How many trucks run daily on average? 

Answer: 

It is our understanding that on average, our current service provider utilizes three 

collection trucks and allocates a spare vehicle in the event of a breakdown.  

However, it must be clearly understood, while the number of vehicles used by our 

current contractor meets its needs and schedules, it is not necessarily 

representative of what may be needed to fulfill the contract.  Each Proponent 

must submit its own approach and methodology for providing the service.  

Question 5: 

What is the contamination ratio at the curb for recyclables? 

Answer: 

2.5% based on the 2018 tonnages for curbside recycling.  Please refer to Page 11 

of the Request for Proposals. 

Question 6: 

What is the material composition at the curb? 

Answer: 

This information can be found on Page 11 of the Request for Proposals.  

Recycling Curbside 2018 tonnages   982.00 

 Mixed Fibre    579.38 

 Plastics     137.48 

 Metal Cans    113.91 

 Glass     76.60 

 Aluminium Cans    50.08 

 Residue Waste    24.55 

 
 

Question 7: 

What kind of trucks are used by the current service provider? 
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Answer: 

The types of trucks used by our current service provider is irrelevant.  In 

responding to this RFP each Proponent must submit its own approach and 

methodology for providing the service. 

Question 8: 

Would the City consider allowing bidders to submit proposals electronically? 

Answer: 

No.  The Town will not be accepting submissions electronically.  Sections 5.3 and 

5.4 of the RFP outline the documentation required. 

Question 9: 

Could the liquidated damages be held in abeyance for the first 3 months of the Contract 

as a grace period for the new Contractor as it sets up and becomes proficient in the 

work? 

Answer: 

The terms have already been set within the Request for Proposals.  The 

consideration you have expressed in this question cannot be waived by staff.  

Only Council would have the authority to make such a decision and this cannot 

be agreed upon at this stage of the process. 

Question 10: 

Are there any age requirements on the trucks proposed?  Due to the length of this 

contract, industry best practice suggests that the trucks proposed must be new, 

however, due to the early start date of this contract we suggest the Town offer the 

option to begin the contract with used trucks, but only for a short period of time.  This 

would level the playing field for all bidders, and thus maximizes competition for this bid, 

which is the City’s fiduciary duty to taxpayers, but also ensures that the City receives 

the lowest prices possible for the completion of this Work.  

Answer: 

Please refer to Addendum #1 to RFP 2019-01 CAO/ADMIN, issued August 29, 

2019. The purpose of the Addendum is to provide clarity of language and ensure 

that the criteria for collection trucks also applies to roll-off trucks.  The RFP does 

not mandate that the collection vehicles be new for this contract.  However, the 

continuity and reliability of service is paramount.   

“Section 4.2.3(a) of Request for Proposals #2019-01 CAO/ADMIN is hereby amended 
by deleting the entire original wording and replacing it with the following: 
 
4.2.3 Approach & Methodology for Providing Service 
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Proponents shall describe their firm’s approach and methodology to provide 
the service, based on the deliverables outlined in Section 2 of this RFP.  
Proponents’ submissions must include the following information to receive full 
consideration from the Town: 
 
 

(a) A listing of the number, type and age of equipment proposed to be used for the 
collection of domestic waste, recyclable material and organic waste.  All 
collections trucks proposed to provide the services outlined in this RFP, 
including the roll-off trucks, are not expected to be new for purposes of this 
contract; however, continuity and reliability of service is paramount.”  

 
Question 11: 

Could the Town please provide a transfer station for the receiving of recyclables and 

organics?  This is needed in order to create an even, competitive environment for all 

bidders.  Some bidders have their own private transfer stations in the area, while most 

do not.  As such, those bidders with the transfer facilities will not provide pricing and an 

opportunity to other bidders to use their facilities for a fee.  If the Town wants as many 

bids (and as such, as competitive pricing) as possible, then they need to provide a 

transfer facility for all bidders to bid with. 

Answer: 

The RFP has set out what municipal facilities are available.  If an out of Town 

Proponent has no access to other transfer facilities that is a disadvantage but is 

not the Town’s responsibility.  The Town currently has Ministry approved 

facilities and no other facilities will be approved for the purpose of this contract. 

Question 12: 

Due to the extensive submission requirements and other large municipal solicitations at 
this time, I would like to request an extension to the submission deadline. 
 
Answer: 

The Town will not be extending the deadline for submissions as identified in 

Sections 5.1 and 5.3 of the RFP. 

Question 13: 

Is the contractor responsible for the purchase and delivery of blue boxes and totes for 
replacement purposes? 
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Answer: 

No.  The contractor is not responsible for blue box sales / replacement.  The 

Town sells blue boxes directly to residents.  Please refer to Section 2.2.5 of the 

RFP. 

Question 14: 

Please provide Monthly breakdown in Metric Tonnes (MT) for waste and recycling. 
 
Answer: 
The Town does not track monthly breakdowns by weight therefore I am not able 
to provide the information requested.  Please refer to the answer to Question 1 for 
the 2018 service rates. 
 
Question 15: 

What is the current schedule for leaf and yard waste collection? 
 
Answer: 

Please refer to Section 2.2.3 of the RFP.  Leaf, brush and yard waste are picked 

up twice per calendar year, in the Spring and Fall.  In 2018 the collection took 

place during the second and third weeks of May and November.   

Question 16: 

What is the weight in MT of yard waste collected per Spring and per Fall events? 
 
Answer: 

The Town does not track the tonnages of materials from leaf and yard waste 

collection.  The Town does however track the number of tandem axel dump truck 

loads it takes to complete the work.  The Spring 2019 collection was 97 loads and 

the Fall 2018 collection was 94 loads.  

Question 17: 

On the Pricing Schedules 1, 2 and 3, the haulage of material is broken out separately 

from the curbside collection.  Typically, the curbside collection and haulage are charged 

as one rate and then the disposal is extra.  Can Proponents list the haulage as 

“included in Curbside Collection rate”? 

Answer: 

Yes, Proponents can list the haulage as being included in the curbside collection; 
however, Proponents must clearly indicate in their submission that this is being 
done and the rationale for presenting it in this manner. 
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Question 18: 

On Pricing Schedules 4 there is one line for the “Cost per Tip/Bin” 
Is this rate to include the lift and disposal of the material inside or is this to just be the lift 
rate and then the applicable disposal rate from schedules 1,2 and 3 would apply based 
on the weight of the material in the bins? 

 

Answer: 

Yes.  The cost line within Schedule 4 is to include the lift rate and disposal of the 
material inside.  Proponents may include a footnote stating that the price will vary 
with the weight of the materials and identify the applicable rate.  


